HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD
HAVANT
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX
Telephone:
Fax:
Website:

023 9247 4174
023 9248 0263
www.havant.gov.uk

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA
Membership:

Councillor Smith K (Chairman)

Councillors Mackey, Hart, Perry, Pierce Jones, Pike and Rees

Meeting:

Governance & Audit Committee

Date:

Wednesday 2 March 2016

Time:

5.00 pm

Venue:

Hollybank Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road,
Havant, Hants PO9 2AX

The business to be transacted is set out below:
Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer
23 February 2016
Contact Officer:

Nicholas Rogers 023 9244 6233
Email: nicholas.rogers@havant.gov.uk

Page

1

Apologies
To receive apologies for absence.

2

Minutes

1-4

To confirm the minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee held
on 2 December 2015
3

Matters Arising
To consider any matters arising from the minutes of the previous
meeting.

4

Declarations of Interest
i

5

Chairman's Report

6

External Audit Papers

5 - 36

To note the Governance and Audit Committee Progress Report
2015, Annual Certification Report 2014-15 and Local Government
Audit Committee Sector Briefing from external auditors
7

Internal Audit Progress Report 2015-16 (January 2016)

37 - 54

8

Internal Audit Plan 2016-17

55 - 64

9

Internal Audit Charter 2016-17

65 - 74

10

Quarterly Update on Corporate Risks from the Executive Board

75 - 78

11

Monitoring Officer's Update

ii

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE,
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 9244 6231
Internet
This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk
Public Attendance and Participation
Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and
observe the meetings. Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to
make deputations on matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this
procedure and for further information please get in touch with the contact
officer for this agenda.
Disabled Access
The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled.
Emergency Procedure
Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will
sound.
PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.
DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO
No Smoking Policy
The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its
offices, corridors, meeting rooms and toilets.
Parking
Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park
opposite the Plaza.

iii

Public
Service
Plaza

iv

7

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
2 December 2015

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
At a meeting of the Governance & Audit Committee held on 2 December 2015
Present
Councillor Smith K (Chairman)
Councillors Mackey, Hart, Perry, Pike, Rees and Shimbart
22

Apologies
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Pierce Jones.

23

Minutes
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Governance and Audit
Committee held on 23 September 2015 be approved as a correct record
subject to the following amendments:

24

i)

Cllr G Shimbart be recorded as having attended the meeting; and

ii)

Cllr Mackey be recorded as having submitted apologies.

Matters Arising
There were no matters arising.

25

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interests from any of the members present.

26

Chairman's Report
The Chairman thanked Helen Thompson of Ernst and Young LLP, who was
attending her last Governance and Audit Committee, for all her hard work and
assistance during her time as auditor of the Council. A welcome was also
extended to Andrew Brittain who would be undertaking the 2015/16 audit.

27

External Audit Papers
The Committee considered two papers and a verbal update presented by Helen
Thompson of Ernst and Young LLP who joined the meeting for the debate on
this item and answered members’ questions in connection with the reports.
The Annual Audit Letter 2014/15 provided a summary of the key issues arising
from the 2014/15 audit including an update on the final proposed fee.
The Audit Progress update provided the Committee with an overview of the
progress made on the certification of the 2014/15 Housing Benefit Subsidy
Claim.

8

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
2 December 2015

The Local Government Audit Committee Briefing summarised some of the
current issues facing the sector. The Committee was provided with an update
on the Value for Money Conclusion guidance and expressed an interest in
receiving a presentation on this subject at a future meeting.
RESOLVED that the reports and update be noted.
28

Internal Audit Progress Report
The Committee considered a paper presented by Amanda Chalmers of the
Southern Internal Audit Partnership who joined the meeting for the debate on
this item and answered members’ questions in connection with the report.
The paper provided an overview of internal audit activity against assurance
work completed in accordance with the approved audit plan and a summary of
the status of ‘live’ reports.
The Committee was pleased to note that good progress was being made on the
audit plan and any actions classified as overdue were being progressed and
implemented.
A question was raised regarding how future audit activity would be impacted if
the Council entered into a Joint Venture Company agreement with NORSE. It
was explained that the audit plan for next year had yet to be finalised and
discussions were ongoing on how to progress this as the decision on whether
to enter into the agreement had yet to be finalised.
In response to an enquiry over why the management action on the Land
Charges audit was listed as overdue it was suggested the Business Services
Team Leader circulate a response to the Committee.
RESOLVED that the report be noted.

29

Southern Internal Audit Partnership - External Quality Assessment
Amanda Chalmers presented the Committee with the outcomes arising from
the Southern Internal Audit Partnership’s External Quality Assessment.
The assessment had been undertaken by the Institute of Internal Auditors and
the Committee was pleased to note that a positive outcome had been achieved.
A list of recommendations for further development were noted.
RESOLVED that External Quality Assessment of the Southern Internal Audit
Partnership be noted.

9
Governance & Audit Committee (2.12.15)

30

Quarterly Update on Corporate Risks from the Executive Board
The Committee noted a report from the Governance and Information Manager
providing an update on the highest corporate risks reviewed by the Joint
Executive Board on 10 November 2015.
RESOLVED that the most serious corporate risks reviewed by the Joint
Executive Board on 10 November 2015 be noted.

31

Dispensation For Councillors To Determine The Setting Of The Council
Tax Precept And Councillor Allowances
The Committee was asked to consider a report from the Monitoring Officer
detailing the granting of dispensation to all Councillors to enable them to
determine the Council Tax base and Councillors Allowances.
The Committee requested that the dispensation expiry period be altered to 30
May 2019 to ensure it was granted for a maximum period of four years.
RECOMMENDED to Council that it grant dispensation to all Councillors to
enable them to:
1)

Consider and determine the Council Tax base each year; and

2)

Consider and determine Councillors Allowances each year.

These dispensations to expire on 30 May 2019.
32

Sub-Committee Hearings - The Process
The Committee was asked to consider a report from the Monitoring Officer
detailing changes to the process followed by the Governance and Audit
Committee at Hearings convened following an investigation into whether a
Borough Councillor had breached the Council’s Code of Conduct.
RECOMMENDED to Council that the Council’s process for dealing with
allegations be amended as follows:

33

(i)

Reference to the “Governance Committee” be amended so as to read
“Governance and Audit Committee”; and

(ii)

The procedure for hearings be amended to ensure that a separate
process for hearings convened following an investigation be added as
Appendix 3 to the process.

Code of Conduct Complaints
There was no business to discuss under this item.

10

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
2 December 2015

The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm and concluded at 6.01 pm

External Audit Papers

Havant Borough Council
Governance & Audit Committee Progress Report
March 2016

Ernst & Young LLP
Wessex House
19 Threefield Lane
Southampton
SO14 3QB

Tel: + 44 2380 382000
Fax: + 44 2380 382001
ey.com

Tel: 023 8038 2000
Fax: 023 8038 2001

Governance & Audit Committee
Havant Borough Council
Public Service Plaza
Civic Centre Road
Havant
PO92AX

2 March 2016

Audit Progress Report
We are pleased to attach our Audit Progress Report.
The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with an overview of the final position against the
Council’s 2014/15 audit plan, and our initial plans for the 2015/16 audit. This report is a key mechanism
in ensuring that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.
Our audit is undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of Responsibilities issued
by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional
requirements.
We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you as well as understand whether there are
other matters which you consider may influence our audit.
Yours faithfully

Andrew Brittain
Executive Director
For and behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Contents
Audit Progress 2014/15 ........................................................................2
Audit Progress 2015/16 ........................................................................3
Timetable 2015/16 .................................................................................5

In April 2015 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued ‘‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and
audited bodies 2015-16’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website
(www.psaa.co.uk)
The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and
audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end,
and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The ‘Terms of Appointment from 1 April 2015’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors
must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code)
and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This progress update is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the
Governance & Audit Committee, and is prepared for the sole use of the audited body. We, as appointed auditor,
take no responsibility to any third party.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner,
1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to
do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you
may of course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you
may contact our professional institute.

EY ÷ i

Audit Progress 2014/15

Audit Progress 2014/15
2014/15
We are presenting our annual report on the certification of claims and returns to the
Committee today. This completes our work in relation to the 2014/15 financial year.

EY ÷ 2

Audit Progress 2015/16

Audit Progress 2015/16
Fee letter
We issued our 2015/16 fee letter to the Council on 1 July 2015.

Financial Statements
We adopt a risk based approach to the audit and, as part of our ongoing continuous planning,
we will continue to meet key officers regularly to ensure the 2015/16 audit runs as smoothly
as possible and to identify any risks and technical accounting issues that require our
consideration at the earliest opportunity. .

Planning and interim visit
We are scheduled to complete our initial planning work, including the walkthrough of the key
financial systems in February and March 2016. The Council implemented a number of new
systems in October 2015, where this is the case we will be required to walk through both the
old and new system, and undertake detailed testing of data migration.
We are currently working with officers to discuss the most efficient approach to the following
issue which we have been made aware of:
►

data migration of transactions from old to new systems – certain transaction dates
migrated in English format from the old finance systems have defaulted to an
American format in the new Civica system. This applies to the six months data
migrated to the CIVICA system. We will work with officers to ensure that we can
obtain sufficient assurance over the accuracy of postings and assess any impact on
the financial statements of the Council.

We will update the Committee when the testing of controls and early substantive testing has
been completed.
Internal Audit
Internal Audit is a key part of the Council’s internal control environment that we review during
our assessment process. This process helps us to assess the level of risk of material errors
occurring in the financial statements and informs the level of testing that we are required to
complete in support of the audit opinion. We consider Internal Audit’s progress with their
annual audit plan and the results of their testing of financial systems and, where it is
appropriate to do so, we will undertake procedures to enable us to place reliance upon this
testing.
Post statements visit
We are in the process of finalising the exact dates for our audit visit, and we will have early
discussions on the working papers required in support of the audit.
Our detailed audit plan, setting out the risks we have identified and the work we will
undertake in response, will be presented to the Governance & Audit Committee in June 2016.
We will continue to use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole
populations of your financial data, in particular payroll and journal entries.
We will also review and report to the National Audit Office, to the extent and in the form
required by them, on your whole of government accounts return.

Ernst & Young ÷ 3

Audit Progress 2015/16

Value for money
The NAO has consulted on a draft Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) in respect of auditors’ work
on value for money (VFM) arrangements. The guidance has now been issued and sets out
the proposed overall approach to work on VFM arrangements which apply to audits from
2015/16 onwards.
A copy of the final AGN, and the supporting information for local government bodies, can be
viewed on the NAO website: http://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/guidance-andinformation-for-auditors/.
We are required to reach our statutory conclusion on arrangements to secure value for
money based on the overall evaluation criterion, supported by sub-criteria as set out below.
The overall criterion for 2015/16 is:
►

In all significant respects, you had proper arrangements to ensure you took properly
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

And the sub criteria are:
►

informed decision making;

►

sustainable resource deployment; and

►

working with partners and other third parties.

Possible examples of risks to our VFM conclusion would include the governance
arrangements of the joint corporate service tender and the ongoing financial resilience of the
Council. We will carry out our detailed risk assessment during our interim visit and report the
risks we have identified, and associated work we will carry out, to the Governance & Audit
Committee in June 2016.

Local appointment of auditors
The Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has announced that it has
decided not to extend the existing arrangements for external audit contracts beyond the end
of 2017/18. From 2018/19 onwards, local authorities will be responsible for appointing their
own auditors, and directly managing the resulting contract and the relationship.
Although the new approach to local audit does not come into play until 2018/19, bodies will
need to start putting in place the mechanism required to deliver this. As part of the process,
bodies will need to set up auditor panels to advise on the selection, appointment and removal
of external auditors, and on maintaining an independent relationship with them. These will
need to be in place by early 2017, with the procurement process taking place in spring 2017
and external auditors being appointed by December 2017.
Existing external audit arrangements will remain unchanged for the 2015/16, 2016/17 and
2017/18 years.

Other issues of interest
In addition to our formal reporting and deliverables we provide practical business insights and
updates on regulatory matters through our Sector Briefings. We attach our quarter one
briefing to this progress report.

Ernst & Young ÷ 4

October 2016

September –
November 2016

Annual Reporting

Grant Claims

Annual certification report

Annual Audit Letter

Whole of Government Accounts Submission to NAO
based on their group audit instructions
Audit Completion certificate

Audit report (including our opinion on the financial
statements and a conclusion as to whether the
Council has put in place proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources)

June - August 2016 Audit results report to those charged with governance September 2016

Year-end audit

February 2017

November 2016

June 2016

Audit Plan

Feb – April
2016

June 2016

July 2015

Testing of routine
processes and controls
and early substantive
testing

Audit Fee Letter

-

-

-

Completed - Reported to the July 2015
Committee

Associated Governance Status
and Audit Committee

Audit Plan

April 2015

Notification of audit
fee

Deliverable

Risk assessment and
Feb – April
setting of scope of audit 2016

EY Timetable

Audit phase

EY ÷ 5

We set out below a timetable showing the key stages of the audit, including the value for money work, and the deliverables we will provide to you through the
2015/16 Governance and Audit Committee cycle. We will provide formal reports to the Committee throughout our audit process as outlined below.

Timetable 2015/16

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
Ernst & Young LLP
© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the
UK.
All rights reserved.
The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of
Ernst & Young Global Limited.
Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1
2AF.

ey.com

EY ÷ 1

Certification of claims and
returns annual report 2014-15
Havant Borough Council
December 2015

Ernst & Young LLP

Ernst & Young LLP
Wessex House
19 Threefield Lane
Southampton
Hampshire
SO14 3QB

Tel: 023 8038 2000
Fax: 023 8038 2001
www.ey.com/uk

Tel: 023 8038 2000

The Members of the Governance and Audit Committee
Havant Borough Council
Public Service Plaza
Civic Centre Road
Havant
PO9 2AX

9 December 2015

Dear Members

Certification of claims and returns annual report 2014-15 for Havant
Borough Council
We are pleased to report on our certification work. This report summarises the results of our work on
Havant Borough Council’s 2014-15 claims.
Scope of work
Local authorities claim large sums of public money in grants and subsidies from central government and
other grant-paying bodies and must complete returns providing financial information to government
departments. In some cases these grant-paying bodies and government departments require
appropriately qualified auditors to certify the claims and returns submitted to them.
Under section 28 of the Audit Commission Act 1998, as transitionally saved, the Audit Commission made
arrangements for certifying claims and returns in respect of the 2014-15 financial year. These
arrangements required only the certification of the housing benefits subsidy claim. In certifying this we
followed a methodology determined by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) and did not
undertake an audit of the claim.
Statement of responsibilities
The Audit Commission’s ‘Statement of responsibilities of grant-paying bodies, authorities, the Audit
Commission and appointed auditors in relation to claims and returns’ (statement of responsibilities)
applied to this work. It serves as the formal terms of engagement between ourselves as your appointed
auditor and the Council as audited body.
This report is prepared in the context of the statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to those
charged with governance and is prepared for the sole use of the Council. As appointed auditor we take
no responsibility to any third party.
Summary
Section 1 of this report outlines the results of our 2014-15 certification work and highlights the significant
issues.
We checked and certified the housing benefits subsidy claim with a total value, post review, of
£32,451,259. We met the submission deadline. Our initial work identified two errors. As a result further
testing was undertaken by the Council and reviewed by us. We reported the results of our initial and
additional testing in a qualification letter to the DWP. Details of the qualification matters are included in
section 1.

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.
A list of members’ names is available for inspection at 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF, the firm’s principal place of business and registered office.

Fees for certification work are summarised in section 2. The fees for 2014-15 were published by the
Audit Commission on 27 March 2014 and are now available on the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd
(PSAA’s) website (www.psaa.co.uk)
We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the meeting of the
Governance and Audit Committee on 2 March 2016.
Yours faithfully

Helen Thompson
Executive Director
Ernst & Young LLP
Enc

Contents

Contents
1.

Housing benefits subsidy claim .................................................................................1

2.

2014-15 certification fees............................................................................................ 2

3.

Looking forward .......................................................................................................... 3

EY ÷ i

Housing benefits subsidy claim

1.

Housing benefits subsidy claim
Scope of work

Results

Value of claim presented for certification

£32,451,508

Limited or full review

Full

Amended

Amended – Subsidy decreased by £249

Qualification letter

Yes

Fee – 2014/15
Fee – 2013/14

£17,840
£12,320

Recommendations from prior year 2013/14:
None
Local Government administers the Government’s housing benefits scheme for tenants and
can claim subsidies from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) towards the cost of
benefits paid.
The certification guidance requires auditors to complete more extensive ‘40+’ testing
(extended testing) if initial testing identifies errors in the calculation of benefit or compilation
of the claim. Our initial testing found two errors which resulted in additional work being
undertaken, these are summarised in the table below:
Finding in initial sample

Audit Response

Non Housing Revenue Account (Non
HRA)
Local
Housing
Allowance
Expenditure: One case was identified
where the incorrect LHA rate had been
applied resulting in a misclassification of
expenditure.

As the cell had less than one hundred cases in we
were required to review all cases to establish if
this error had occurred again. No further instances
were identified and, as our work enabled us to
identify all cases where this error could occur, we
were able to amend the claim prior to certification.

Rent Allowances: One case was
identified where the Council had failed
to identify the expenditure as an
overpayment of benefit.

Additional 40+ testing was undertaken by the
Council and sample checked by auditors. No
further errors were identified and we reported the
facts of this error in the qualification letter sent to
the DWP.

EY ÷ 1

2014-15 certification fees

2.

2014-15 certification fees
The Audit Commission determined a scale fee each year for the audit of claims and returns.
For 2014-15, these scale fees were published by the Audit Commission on 27 March 2014
and are now available on the PSAA’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).
Claim or return

2013-14

2014-15

2014-15

Indicative fee

Indicative fee

Actual fee

£

£

£

Housing and council tax benefits
subsidy

12,320

17,840

17,840

Total

12,320

17,840

17,840

The indicative fee was set by the Audit Commission based on the level of work completed in
2012-13. As reported in section one, there has been an increase in the work required as a
result of finding one error that required a review of all 78 Non HRA cases.

EY ÷ 2

Looking forward

3.

Looking forward
From 1 April 2015, the duty to make arrangements for the certification of relevant claims and
returns and to prescribe scales of fees for this work was delegated to (PSAA) by the
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.
The Council’s indicative certification fee for 2015-16 is £9,240. This was prescribed by PSAA
in April 2015, based on no changes to the work programme for 2015-16. PSAA reduced scale
audit fees and indicative certification fees for most audited bodies by 25 per cent based on
the fees applicable for 2013-14.
Details of individual indicative fees are available at the following web address:
http://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-and-certification-fees/201516-work-programme-and-scales-offees/individual-fees-for-local-government-bodies
We must seek the agreement of PSAA to any proposed variations to these indicative
certification fees. We will inform the Executive Head of Governance and Logistics before
seeking any such variation.

EY ÷ 3

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
Ernst & Young LLP
© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.
The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.
Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

Local government
audit committee
briefing
Contents at a glance
Government and economic news
Accounting, auditing and
governance
Regulation news
Key questions for the audit
committee
Find out more

This sector briefing is one of the ways
that we see as supporting you and your
organisation in an environment that is
constantly changing and evolving.

technical issues relevant to the local
government sector but wider matters
of potential interest to you and your
organisation.

It covers issues which may have an
impact on your organisation, the local
government sector and the audits that we
undertake.

Links to where you can find out more on
any of the articles featured can be found
at the end of the briefing, as well as some
examples of areas where EY can provide
support to Local Authorities.

The public sector audit specialists in
EY’s national Government and Public
Sector (GPS) team have extensive public
sector knowledge which is supported
by the wider expertise across EY’s UK
and international business. This briefing
reflects this, bringing together not only

We hope that you find the briefing
informative and should this raise any
issues that you would like to discuss
further please do contact your local
engagement team.

Government and economic news
EY Item Club forecast

Local Government Devolution

In its latest quarterly forecast (Winter) the EY Item Club highlights
that what it terms the UK consumer’s “holiday” from inflation
and austerity in 2015 is expected to continue well into 2016,
aided by the sharp fall in oil and other commodity prices, and the
Chancellor’s change of heart on working tax credits.

Towards the end of 2015, Birmingham and Liverpool each agreed
devolution deals with Treasury which gives them control over
infrastructure investment, transport and skills. This brings the
total of devolution deals to 6:

Whilst the global situation is clearly fragile, the UK is seen to be
well placed to ride out the storms. Growth is expected to increase
from the revised 2.2% in 2015 to 2.6% this year, being supported
by low inflation and interest rates. The CPI is forecast to increase
by just 0.7% and they do not expect the Bank of England Monetary
Policy Committee to increase bank rate until late in the year.
Looking further forward, the forecast is for inflation and austerity
to return, with GDP growth of 2.3% in 2017 and 2.2% in 2018 and
consumer spending growth dropping from 2.8% in 2016 of 2.1%
in 2017 and 1.7% in 2018. Highlighted as impacting on this are
the increasing taxes and levies on consumers and companies, and
the roll-out of Universal Credit (which will claw back this Autumn’s
concessions to low earners). Inflation is expected to increase to
1.8% by 2018, remaining below the MPC target until 2019.
Continuing uncertainty over the EU Referendum could potentially
hit business investment this year, as businesses wait to see the
result, but momentum in the UK and other economies is seen as
supporting capital spending this year.

2

| Local government audit committee briefing

►► Birmingham
►► Liverpool
►► Greater Manchester
►► Sheffield
►► North East
►► Tees Valley
Each area will need to elect a metro mayor, with elections
expected to take place in 2017.
For Birmingham, £1.2bn of government investment is anticipated
over the next 30 years, and for Liverpool the expectation is
£30mn per year over the next three decades.
Read the government announcements in full at https://www.gov.
uk/government/news/historic-devolution-deal-to-power-themidlands-engine and https://www.gov.uk/government/news/
liverpool-devolution-deal-boosts-the-northern-powerhouse.

Government and economic news
Spending Review 2015

Consultation: New Homes Bonus

Some headlines from the Spending Review 2015 include:

In 2011 the New Homes Bonus was introduced to incentivise
local authorities to encourage housing growth in their areas.
Since 2011, £3.4bn has been allocated to support the delivery of
700,000 new homes and the return of 100,000 long term empty
homes to use.

►► The intention to be running a £10bn surplus by 2019/20.
►► Tax credit taper rates and thresholds will remain unchanged.
►► Council tax increases of 2% to support social care will be
permitted. Local Police and Crime Commissioners will have
the power to increase their share of council tax by 2% from
April 2016.
►► From 2020, local government will retain 100% of business
rates collected. The system of top ups and tariffs redistributing
revenues between local authorities will be retained. The
uniform rate will be abolished; allowing local areas to cut
business rates if they choose to do so in order to win new jobs
and generate wealth.

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG)
has released a consultation which seeks views on potential
changes to the New Homes Bonus. The changes are intended
to “better reflect authorities’ delivery of new housing”. Other
proposed changes include introducing a reduction to the number
of years in which current and future payments are made, from six
years to four years.
See full details of the consultation as well as methods for
responding at:

►► Police and schools funding will be protected in line
with inflation.

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/new-homes-bonussharpening-the-incentive-technical-consultation

Read more at:

The deadline for response is 10th March 2016.

https://www.gov.uk/government/topical-events/autumnstatement-and-spending-review-2015
The Government has also consulted on the 2016-17 settlement.
Further details available at https://www.gov.uk/government/
uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/486730/
Provisional_settlement_consultation_document.pdf.

3

| Local government audit committee briefing

Government and economic news
Local Authority Revenue Expenditure and
Financing
During November 2015, statistics for 2014-15 on revenue
expenditure and financing with local government were released by
the Department for Communities and Local Government.
Some highlights include:
Total revenue expenditure by local authorities in England reduced
by 0.5% in 2014-15, from £96.4bn in 2013-14 to £95.9bn,
however, excluding spend on Education (30.7% of total net current
expenditure) there was an increase of 1.5% from £60.5bn in 201314 to £61.5bn.
Net current expenditure on education saw the largest decrease,
which was largely driven by schools achieving academy status and
therefore receiving central expenditure, and by the reclassification
of some services to Children and Families Social Care services
(which saw a £1.2bn increase for this reason).
Local Authorities added £0.9bn to reserves in 2014-15 as
compared to £2.4bn in 2013-14. This takes total reserves to
£22.5bn and means that the last 15 years has seen a significant
increase in the amount held by local authorities in non-ringfenced
reserves. Communities Secretary Greg Clark has noted this
increase and said:

4

| Local government audit committee briefing

“With local government accounting for a quarter of all public
spending, it is right that they are called on to play their part in
dealing with the deficit.
Today’s figures show how they are well placed to do so, with local
authorities holding £22.5bn held in non-ringfenced reserves — up
170% in real terms over the last 15 years.
As we continue to secure our country’s economic future and cut
the deficit, now is the time to make efficient use of their assets and
resources to provide the services local people want to see.”
Public Finance has published an article available at http://www.
publicfinance.co.uk/news/2015/11/mounting-reserves-leavecouncils-well-placed-make-cuts-says-clark, and the full publication
is available at https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/localauthority-revenue-expenditure-and-financing-in-england-2014-to2015-final-outturn

Response to flooding
The Bellwin scheme, which compensates eligible authorities for
exceptional costs incurred in incidents like flooding, has been
opened for councils affected by floods resulting from storms
Desmond and Eva.
Authorities are eligible for costs under the scheme when they have
spent more than 0.2% of their calculated annual revenue budgets
on works.

Government and economic news
Bellwin allows eligible authorities to apply to have 100% of their
costs above threshold reimbursed by the government.
Eligible authorities include:
►► Councils
►► Policing bodies
►► Fire and rescue authorities
►► National Park authorities

Public sector exit payment recovery regulations
The government is consulting on draft regulations that will give
effect to the powers enacted in the Small Business, Enterprise and
Employment Act 2015. These regulations allow for the recovery
of exit payments following the return of a high earner to the public
sector within a year of their initial departure.
Changes made to the policy since the previous consultation
include:

For more information see https://www.gov.uk/government/news/
north-west-england-floods-2015-government-response.

►► The minimum earnings threshold for individuals subject to
the recovery provisions has been lowered from £100,000 to
£80,000

Council Tax support

►► The policy has been extended to include qualifying returns to
any part of the public sector, rather than only to the same part
of the public sector

A review into the effectiveness of Council Tax support schemes
across the country has been initiated, led by Member of
Parliament, Eric Ollerenshaw, OBE.
Council Tax Benefit was reformed from 2013-14 to give councils
the power to design their own schemes and align them to local
needs. This review is intended to examine the implementation of
this change and to consider whether or not this support should be
part of the Universal Credit payments in the future.
Further details of the review are available at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/launch-of-review-intocouncil-tax-support.

►► Introduction of a tapered recovery period for 12 months from
the exit date
►► Recovery will now include employer funded pension ‘top up’
payments made under the Local Government Pension Scheme.
Public sector organisations that are in scope and those are that
are proposed to be exempt are included in the draft regulations.
Following this consultation, the regulations will go through
Parliamentary scrutiny, and the intention is that the policy will take
effect from April 2016.
Read more at https://www.gov.uk/government/news/governmentcalls-time-on-public-sector-parachute-payments-for-boomerangbosses.

5

| Local government audit committee briefing

Accounting, auditing and governance
Faster Close update
Since our think piece ‘accelerating your financial close
arrangements’ in the summer — we have worked together with
our clients to successfully deliver another round of financial
statements audits.
We have seen again a number of our clients achieve the earlier 31
July deadline — three years ahead of schedule. Nationally, 5% of
opinions were issued by 31 July for 2014-15.
At other clients, we have seen a shortening of the actual audit
window as both preparers and auditors refine the operational
timetable in readiness for 2017-18 audits.
The think piece set out some areas where preparers can hone
their closedown plans and work with their auditors in the run up to
the revised timetable. Discussions with clients around the country
are showing encouraging signs that finance teams are already
grasping the issue and working on solutions to enable them to
prepare and submit draft financial statements and supporting
working papers to the auditor by 31 May. Twenty-one percent of
our clients have committed to this earlier target for the 2015-16
audits.
On our side, as a firm, we are reviewing how we can streamline
our audit approach, to provide maximum ability to undertake early
substantive testing across a Month 8-10 window, thereby reducing
some pressure in the key June — July audit window. This may not
work in all cases, because of the budget setting process, so other
ways of streamlining the audit approach are also being developed.

6

| Local government audit committee briefing

In addition, we are addressing the resourcing challenge that this
presents to audit firms, with a significant recruitment campaign to
enable us to continue to deliver exceptional client service across
the entire sector. This will require us to phase our audits, at both
an interim and final audit stage to allow us greater flexibility in
resource deployment and audit clients should be prepared to have
bigger audit teams on site for shorter periods of time, as running
all audits concurrently is not likely to be possible.
A key issue arising from our recent discussions is dealing with the
governance processes at councils for receiving the auditor’s report
and approving the accounts. There are a wide range of approval
processes in place at councils as a result of custom and practice
over the years, and some are more streamlined than others.
Councils will need to review their governance processes for
approving the accounts with a view to making it as simple as
possible to ensure the maximum amount of the nine week window
for audit can be used for audit procedures. Under the Account
and Audit Regulations 2015, it is only the responsibility of the
committee ‘charged with governance’ to approve the financial
statements ahead of final certification by the s151 officer. Adding
additional layers of approval through to Cabinet or Full Council
slows down the governance process and potentially adds to the
audit burden.
For 2014-15 audits, 8% of our clients had Audit Committee
meetings scheduled before September for approval of the financial
statements. For 2015-16, in several instances Audit Committee
timetables have not yet been finalised, however, currently 7% of
our client base has already confirmed that their Audit Committee
timetable would enable accounts authorisation before September,
with 4% scheduled before 31 July 2016.

Accounting, auditing and governance
An effective Audit Committee is one which can appropriately
scrutinise the financial statements and the auditor’s results report
prepared under International Standard on Auditing (UK&I) 260,
and challenge officers about accounting policies and estimates in
order to be able to approve the financial statements on behalf of
the council.
Given the lead time for amending corporate governance
processes, officers should review the approval arrangements, and
schemes of delegation from Full Council, ensuring that the Audit
Committee operates as effectively as possible and to the remit
as set out by CIPFA in its guidance ‘Audit Committees: Practical
Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2013 edition)’.

Paragraph 3.14 sets out that ‘the auditor’s work should be
designed to provide the auditor with sufficient assurance to
enable them to report as appropriate to audited bodies other than
health service bodies, providing a conclusion that in all significant
respects, the audited body has (or has not) put in place proper
arrangements to secure value for money through economic,
efficient and effective use of its resources for the relevant period’.
To support the Code, the NAO issues guidance to auditors. This is
undertaken by preparing and publishing Auditor Guidance Notes
(AGNs) which are publically available on its website. See https://
www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/guidance-and-informationfor-auditors/

We are encouraged by the response of our clients to this challenge
and the acceptance that it is a joint responsibility to achieve the
faster close, and we will continue to work with you as we both
prepare for the advanced deadlines.

AGN 03 — Auditors’ work on Value for Money Arrangements was
published in November 2015 following a consultation period. It
confirms the requirement is for auditors to issue a conclusion in
respect of the single overall criterion that:

For further information, please speak to a member of your
engagement team.

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper
arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions
and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

Value for Money guidance
The Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 Section 20(1) requires
that: ‘In auditing the accounts of a relevant authority other than
a health service body, a local auditor must, by examination of the
accounts and otherwise, be satisfied … (c) that the authority has
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources’.
The Act is implemented through the National Audit Office’s 2015
Audit Code of Practice (the Code), which sets out what local
auditors are required to do to fulfil their statutory responsibilities
under the Act.

7

| Local government audit committee briefing

To assist auditors the NAO provide three sub-criteria that are
intended to guide auditors in reaching their overall judgement:
►► Informed decision making
►► Sustainable resource deployment
►► Working with partners and other third parties
However, these are not separate and auditors are not required to
reach a judgement against each one.
Underpinning these sub-criteria are the proper arrangements,

Accounting, auditing and governance
which are aligned to the scope of arrangements that are already
required to be put in place and reported on through documents
such as the annual governance statement.
Auditors are required to undertake a risk assessment to identify
any significant risks that, in the auditor’s judgement, have the
potential to cause the auditor to reach an inappropriate conclusion
on the audited body’s arrangements.
The Code defines ‘significant’ as follows: “a matter is significant
if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude
that the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the
wider public. Significance has both qualitative and quantitative
aspects.”
Where such a significant risk is identified, further audit work will
be undertaken based on the auditor’s professional judgement.
If the auditor does not identify any significant risks, there is no
requirement to carry out further work.
Full information on all of the above can be found within AGN 03.
See https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/guidance-andinformation-for-auditors/

New arrangements for the exercise of
public rights
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (the Regulations) set
out new arrangements for the exercise of public rights from 201516 onwards. In respect of principal bodies, paragraph 9(1) requires
the responsible financial officer to commence the period for the
exercise of public rights and to notify the local auditor of the date
on which that period was commenced. This is a change to previous
arrangements where the local auditor notified the audited body
of the appointed date on or after which local government electors
could exercise their rights.

8

| Local government audit committee briefing

Paragraph 9(2) is clear that the final approval of the statement of
accounts by the authority prior to publication cannot take place
until after the conclusion of the period for the exercise of public
rights. For 2015-16, the thirty working day period for the exercise
of public rights must include the first ten working days of July, this
means that authorities will not be able to approve their audited
accounts or publish before 15 July 2016.
Paragraph 14(1) states that any rights of objection, inspection and
questioning of the local auditor conferred by sections 26 and 27 of
the Act may only be exercised within a single period of 30 working
days. In effect this paragraph brings the period in which an elector
can question the auditor into the inspection period, rather than
immediately following the inspection period as per the previous
regulations. As a result of this, auditors are unable to issue their
audit reports until the 30 day period has been concluded.
Read the regulations in full at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/
uksi/2015/234/regulation/2/made.

Consultation: HRA accounting
The Department for Communities and Local Government is
consulting on directions to replace the Housing Revenue Account
(Accounting Practices) Directions 2011, which will cease to have
effect in relation to Housing Revenue Accounts of local housing
authorities in England from 1 April 2016. DCLG describes the
replacement directions as essentially technical changes in
order to bring the accounting requirements in line with proper
practices under international accounting standards. They specify
information to be disclosed in the notes to the HRA.
See full details of the draft direction at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/housing-revenueaccount-accounting-practices-directions-2015

Regulation news
Report on the results of auditors’ work 2014-15
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) have published their
first report showing the results of auditors’ work for 2014-15
covering 509 principal bodies and 9,755 small bodies.
The report includes information on timeliness of reporting, as well
as the outcomes of those reports.
►► Auditors were able to issue an early opinion (by 31st July
2015) for 5% of principal bodies.
►► The auditor was unable to issue an opinion by the statutory
deadline of 30th September at 15 bodies (3%), compared to 2%
in 2013-14.
►► Consistent with 2013-14, no non-standard opinions
were issued.
►► 20 non-standard value for money opinions were issued,
including 1 adverse conclusion, 18 except-for conclusions, and
one report on matters arising.
►► Ten value for money conclusions were outstanding at the time
of publishing the report.
Read the report in full at:
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-ofappointment/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/

9

| Local government audit committee briefing

Key questions for the audit committee
What questions should the Audit Committee ask itself?
Have we considered our responses to the key government
consultations that affect us, including New Homes Bonus and HRA
Accounting Directions?
Have we formulated a response to support the review of Local
Council Tax Support Schemes? How effective have our council tax
support arrangements been since 2013-14?
Are we monitoring our progress against the revised timetable for
closing the accounts from 2017-18 onwards?
Have we considered amending governance arrangements to
streamline the approval of the financial statements?

10 | Local government audit committee briefing

Find out more
Ey Item Club Summer 2015 forecast

Public Sector Exit Payment Recovery Regulations

For details of the EY Item Club’s latest forecast, see http://www.
ey.com/UK/en/Issues/Business-environment/Financial-marketsand-economy/ITEM---Forecast-headlines-and-projections

Read more at https://www.gov.uk/government/news/governmentcalls-time-on-public-sector-parachute-payments-for-boomerangbosses

Local Government Devolution

Faster Close update

Read the government announcements in full at https://www.gov.
uk/government/news/historic-devolution-deal-to-power-themidlands-engine and https://www.gov.uk/government/news/
liverpool-devolution-deal-boosts-the-northern-powerhouse.

The original publication ‘accelerating your financial close
arrangements’ can be accessed at http://www.ey.com/
Publication/vwLUAssets/EY_-_Accelerating_your_financial_
close_arrangements/$FILE/EY-accelerating-your-financial-closearrangements.pdf

Spending Review 2015
Read more at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/topical-events/autumnstatement-and-spending-review-2015
Consultation: New Homes Bonus
See full details of the consultation as well as methods for
responding at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/new-homes-bonussharpening-the-incentive-technical-consultation

For more information, please contact a member of your
engagement team.
Value for Money guidance
Full information on the new guidance can be found within AGN 03.
See https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/guidance-andinformation-for-auditors/
New arrangements for the exercise of public rights

Local Authority Revenue Expenditure and Financing

Read the regulations in full at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/
uksi/2015/234/regulation/2/made

The full publication is available at:

Consultation: HRA accounting

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/local-authorityrevenue-expenditure-and-financing-in-england-2014-to-2015final-outturn

See full details of the draft direction at:

Response to flooding
For more information see https://www.gov.uk/government/news/
north-west-england-floods-2015-government-response.
Council Tax Support
Further details of the review are available at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/launch-of-review-intocouncil-tax-support.
11 | Local government audit committee briefing

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/housing-revenueaccount-accounting-practices-directions-2015
Report on the results of auditors’ work 2014-15
Read the report in full at:
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-ofappointment/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory services.
The insights and quality services we deliver help build trust and confidence
in the capital markets and in economies the world over. We develop
outstanding leaders who team to deliver on our promises to all of
our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better
working world for our people, for our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or more, of the
member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of which is a separate
legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantee, does not provide services to clients. For more information about
our organization, please visit ey.com.

Ernst & Young LLP
The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.
Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.
© 2016 Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.
ED None
81480.indd (UK) 02/16. Artwork by Creative Services Group Design.
Information in this publication is intended to provide only a general outline of the subjects covered.
It should neither be regarded as comprehensive nor sufficient for making decisions, nor should it be
used in place of professional advice. Ernst & Young LLP accepts no responsibility for any loss arising
from any action taken or not taken by anyone using this material.

ey.com/uk

NON EXEMPT

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

2 March 2016

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2015 - 16 (January 2016)
Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership
FOR DECISION
Key Decision: No

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Governance and Audit
Committee with an overview of internal audit activity against assurance
work completed in accordance with the approved audit plan and to
provide an overview of the status of ‘live’ reports.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

That the Governance and Audit Committee note the Internal Audit
Progress Report (January 2016) as attached.

3.0

Summary

3.1

Under the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, the Council
is responsible for:

3.2



ensuring that its financial management is adequate and effective
and that it has a sound system of internal control which facilitates
the effective exercise of functions and includes arrangements for
the management of risk; and



undertaking an adequate and effective internal audit of its
accounting records and of its system of internal control in
accordance with the proper practices in relation to internal control.

In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the
Council’s Internal Audit Charter, the Chief Internal Auditor is required to
provide a written status report to the Governance and Audit Committee,
summarising:
‘communications on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to
its plan.’

3.3

Appendix 1 summarises the performance of internal audit for 2015-16.

4.0

Implications

4.1

Resources:
Internal Audit is provided through the Southern Internal Audit
Partnership. The audit plan consists of 380 audit days and remains
fluid throughout the year to meet the changing needs of the Council.

4.2

Legal:
Compliance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.

4.3

Strategy:
Internal audit plays a vital role in helping the organisation accomplish
its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate
and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes.

4.4

Risks:
The audit needs assessment follows a risk based audit approach taking
cognisance of the Council’s risk register.

4.5

Communications:
None directly from this report.

4.6

Customers and Community:
None directly from this report although improvements to controls and
governance arrangements will ensure more efficient and effective
service delivery.

4.7

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA):
N/A

5.0

Consultation

5.1

The report has been discussed and noted by the Management Team
who met at the Executive Board on 9 February 2016.

Appendices:
Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Progress Report (January 2016)
Agreed and signed off by:
Legal Services: Sara Bryan - Acting Solicitor to the Council – 18 February
2016
Finance: Jane Eaton - Executive Head of Governance & Logistics – 9
February 2016
Contact Officer:
Job Title:

Neil Pitman
Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership

Telephone:
E-Mail:

01962 845139
neil.pitman@hants.gov.uk

Havant Borough Council

January 2016

Internal Audit Progress Report

Purpose of report

Performance dashboard

Status of ‘live’ reports

Executive summaries ‘Limited’ and ‘No’ assurance opinions

Fraud and Irregularities

Planning and resourcing

Rolling work programme

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

2

Role of Internal Audit

1.

Contents:

10 - 13

10

9

8

6–7

5

4

3

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

3

The Council’s response to internal audit activity should lead to the strengthening of the control environment and, therefore, contribute to the
achievement of the organisations objectives.

The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management processes, control systems, accounting records and
governance arrangements. Internal audit plays a vital role in advising the Council that these arrangements are in place and operating
effectively.

‘Independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisations operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes’.

The role of internal audit is best summarised through its definition within the Standards, as an:

The standards for ‘proper practices’ are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013 [the Standards].

‘Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.’

The requirement for an internal audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015,
which states that a relevant body must:

1. Role of Internal Audit

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

Basically a sound framework of internal control with opportunities to improve controls and / or compliance with the control
framework. No significant risks to the achievement of system objectives have been identified

Significant weakness identified in the framework of internal control and / or compliance with the control framework which
could place the achievement of system objectives at risk

Fundamental weaknesses identified in the framework of internal control or the framework is ineffective or absent with
significant risk to the achievement of system objectives

Adequate

Limited

No

4

A sound framework of internal control is in place and operating effectively. No risks to the achievement of system
objectives have been identified

Substantial

Internal audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk management,
control and governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives of the service area under review. Assurance opinions
are categorised as follows:

a summary of significant issues that impact on the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual opinion.

a summary of internal audit performance, planning and resourcing issues; and

an update on progress against the annual audit plan;

The status of ‘live’ internal audit reports;

In accordance with proper internal audit practices (Public Sector Internal Audit Standards), and the Internal Audit Charter the Chief Internal
Auditor is required to provide a written status report to ‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’, summarising:

2. Purpose of report

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

60% Work
in Progress

% of 2015/16
revised plan
delivered (incl
14/15 c/f)

40%
Complete

0 % Yet to
Commence

Target
90%

Actual
97%

% Positive Customer Feedback

5

‘It is our view that the Southern Internal Audit Partnership ‘generally conforms’ (top grading) to all of the
principles contained within the International Professional Practice Framework (IPPF); Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards (PSIAS); and the Local Government Application Note (LAGN).

An ‘External Quality Assessment’ of the Southern Internal Audit Partnership was undertaken by the
Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) in September 2015. The report concluded:

Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards / Local Government Application Note

3. Performance dashboard

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

Report
Date

16/12/13
06/01/14
22/04/14
01/07/14
13/08/14
06/10/14
27/10/14
21/01/15
29/04/15
27/05/15
27/05/15
17/06/15
17/06/15
26/08/15
01/09/15

Audit Review

Lease income

Accounts payable

Partnership management

Planning Development Fee Income

Finance - Budgetary Control

Information Management

Fuel Management

Developers Contributions and
Obligations

Beach Huts

IT Security Protocol

IT Partnership Agreement

Council Tax

Building Control

Depot Services (Stock Control)

Code of Conduct

4. Status of ‘Live’ Reports

6

G&L

ES

E&P

G&L

M&D

M&D

ES

E&P

ES

G&L

G&L

E&P

C

G&L

G&L

Audit
Sponsor

Adequate

Limited

Adequate

Adequate

Adequate

Adequate

Adequate

Adequate

Adequate

Adequate

Adequate

Adequate

Limited

Adequate

Adequate

Assurance
Opinion

5 (1)

16 (2)

6 (0)

2 (0)

5 (0)

3 (0)

3 (0)

8 (0)

14 (0)

5 (0)

2 (0)

4 (0)

6 (1)

1 (0)

7 (0)

Reported

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

Not
Accepted

0 (0)

1 (0)

0 (0)

1 (0)

1 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

1 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

Pending

5 (1)

15 (2)

6 (0)

1 (0)

4 (0)

3 (0)

2 (0)

8 (0)

13 (0)

5 (0)

1 (0)

4 (0)

6 (1)

1 (0)

7 (0)

Cleared

Management Actions
(‘High Priority’)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

1 (0)

0 (0)

1 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

Overdue

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

04/09/15
07/10/15
11/12/15
23/11/15

Land Charges

Human Resources

Procurement – Operational Services

Broadmarsh – Coastal Revetment Sea
Defence Works

Executive Head Communities

Executive Head Economy and Planning

Executive Head Environmental Services

Executive Head Governance and Logistics

Executive Head Marketing and Development

Audit Sponsor

Report
Date

Audit Review

E&C

ES

G&L

E&P

7

Audit
Sponsor

C

E&P

ES

G&L

M&D

Adequate

Limited

Limited

Adequate

Assurance
Opinion

11 (2)

12 (10)

15 (8)

2 (1)

Reported

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

Not
Accepted

7 (0)

0 (0)

1 (0)

0 (0)

Pending

4 (2)

12 (10)

14 (8)

1 (1)

Cleared

Management Actions
(‘High Priority’)

0 (0)

0 (0)

0 (0)

1 (0)

Overdue

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

Substantial

Adequate

Assurance opinion:

Limited
No

2

10

Low

0

High

Medium

Management Actions:

8

NB all management actions resulting from this review have been implemented. Management have minimised the risk of recurrence of the issues raised.

As part of our testing of capital purchases we were informed that there have been operational issues with the ten 3.5 Tonne cage tipper trucks which were
added to the fleet over the period December 2008 to March 2014. However, there was insufficient evidence retained to demonstrate whether there was
adequate specification to meet the requirements such as consultation with service users, whole life costings and market research. We are therefore unable
to provide assurances that there is a robust process for developing such specifications.

We carried out an analysis of revenue purchasing data over the past four years, and checked to existing contracts and framework agreements. We found
that there are few formally documented contracts in place. The level of purchasing is such that more formal arrangements would be expected, especially
with regard the use of employment agencies, where Operational Services are a major purchaser within the context of the Authority’s overall spend. For the
latest full year of expenditure (14/15), over £398k was spent by Operational Services with employment agencies, breaching the EU procurement threshold.

Summary of key observations:
We reviewed Contract Procedure Rules (CPR) during the audit and confirmed that most procurement complied with CPR. However, based upon the planned
Capital Programme, we noted that aggregation rules had been breached and an EU tendering exercise should have been undertaken for the acquisition of
plant and vehicles. At the time of the review, the capital programme (2014/15 £356k; 2015/16 £628k and 2016/17 £725k) indicated there was a defined
anticipation of need, which should have been used to aggregate purchases, that exceeded the EU threshold for supplies and services ( £172,514 from 1
January 2014. We also considered that aggregating purchases could potentially achieve better prices than the piecemeal approach to purchasing that had
been adopted.

Final Report Issued: 11/12/2015

Key Contacts: Peter Vince – Operational Services
Manager, Paul Stanley – Transport Fleet
Operations Team Leader

Audit Sponsor: Steve Perkins - Executive Head
(Environmental Services)

Procurement – Operational Services

5. Executive Summaries of new reports published concluding a ‘Limited’ or ‘No’ assurance opinion

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

4 fte*
4 days

Total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of professionally accredited counter fraud specialists

Total amount of time spent by the authority on the investigation and prosecution of fraud

9

**the definition of fraud is as set out by the Audit Commission in Protecting the Public Purse - ‘the intentional false representation, including failure to declare information
or abuse of position that is carried out to make gain, cause loss or expose another to the risk of loss.’

*relates to internal audit staff across the wider SIAP only (does not include other areas of the Council that may affect reported figures i.e. legal, HR, Trading Standards,
departmental investigating officers etc.)

0**

2 fte*

Total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of employees undertaking investigations and prosecutions of fraud

Total number of fraud cases investigated

Nil

01.04.15 – 31.01.16

Number of occasions powers under the Prevention of Social Housing Fraud (Power to Require Information) (England)
Regulations 2014, or similar powers have been used

Part 2 Requirements - Fraud

Local Government Transparency Code 2014

In accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code 2014 there is a requirement on local authorities to publish the following
information with regard counter fraud work:

6. Fraud and Irregularities

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

G&L

G&L

G&L

Asset Management

Contract Management

Strategic planning

Corporate cross cutting















10

Tracker
( on schedule
 Delay)



Limited

Adequate

Limited

Assurance
Opinion



26/08/15

01/09/15

07/10/15

Final
Report
Issued









Draft
Report
Issued










Fieldwork







ES

Depot Services (Stock Control)

2015-16 Reviews





G&L

Code of Conduct



Audit
Outline
Issued



Scoping

G&L

Audit
Sponsor

HR

2014-15 Carry Forward Reviews

Audit Review

8. Rolling Work Programme

Delay due to new
system
implementation

Comment

The audit plan remains fluid to provide a responsive service that reacts to the changing needs of the Council. Progress against the plan is
detailed within section 8.

The internal audit plan for 2015-16 was approved by the Executive Board on 03 February 2015 and the Governance and Audit Committee on
03 March 2015.

7. Planning & Resourcing

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

ES

G&L

Procurement – Operational
Services

Procurement

G&L

G&L

G&L

G&L

Annual Governance Statement

Local Government
Transparency Code 2014

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

Decision Making and
Accountability

G&L

G&L

G&L

G&L

Accounts payable

Accounts Receivable / Debt
management

Financial planning / Budgetary
control

Main accounting

Financial management

G&L

Proactive Fraud Initiatives

Corporate governance

M&D

Audit
Sponsor

Performance Management

Audit Review












n/a









n/a








n/a














Audit
Outline
Issued

Scoping

11





















Fieldwork









Draft
Report
Issued

16/09/15

13/08/15

11/12/15

Final
Report
Issued

Substantial

Substantial

Limited

Assurance
Opinion

























( on schedule
 Delay)

Tracker

Draft report delayed
due to SIAP staff
absence

Comment

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

G&L

Standing Conference of
Problems Associated with the
Coastline Accounts (SCOPAC)

M&D

M&D

ICT Hosted Services

Computer implementations
(Finance)

M&D

G&L

E&P

M&D

E&C

Disabled facilities grants

Insurance

Land charges

Licencing

Broadmarsh – Coastal
Revetment Sea Defence Works

Corporate objectives

M&D

New IT Applications / Finance
System Access Controls

Information technology

G&L

Audit
Sponsor

National Non-Domestic Rates
(NNDR)

Audit Review




























Audit
Outline
Issued







Scoping

12

















Fieldwork













Draft
Report
Issued

Assurance
Opinion

23/11/15

12/08/15

04/09/15

14/10/15

Adequate

Adequate

Adequate

Adequate

Advice role

Final
Report
Issued



















( on schedule
 Delay)

Tracker

Delay due to SIAP
availability

Comment

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

E&C

M&D

G&L

Grant certification – Disabled
facilities grant

Grant certification – Repair and
renew grant

Audit
Sponsor

Thematic Review / smaller
services

Audit Review

n/a

n/a



Scoping

n/a

n/a

Audit
Outline
Issued

13





Fieldwork

n/a

n/a

Draft
Report
Issued

31/07/15

Final
Report
Issued

n/a – grant
certification

Assurance
Opinion







( on schedule
 Delay)

Tracker

Comment

Internal Audit Progress Report – January 2016

NON EXEMPT

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

02 March 2016

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016-17
Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership
FOR DECISION
Key Decision: No

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Governance and Audit Committee
with the Internal Audit Plan 2016-17 for Havant Borough Council (Appendix 1).

1.2

The aim of internal audit’s work programme is to provide independent and
objective assurance to management, in relation to the business activities,
systems or processes under review that:


The framework of internal control, risk management and governance is
appropriate and operating effectively; and



Risks to the achievement of the Council’s objectives are identified,
assessed and managed to a defined acceptable level.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

That the Governance and Audit Committee approve the Internal Audit Plan 20162017.

3.0

Summary

3.1

The Internal Audit Plan provides the mechanism through which the Chief Internal
Auditor can ensure most appropriate use of internal audit resources to provide a
clear statement of assurance on risk management, internal control and
governance arrangements.

3.2

The strategic audit plan has historically projected audit activity over a 3 year
period, however due to the rapidly changing local government environment, the
relevance of predicting future year’s coverage at this stage would be of
questionable value.

3.3

Internal audit focus should be proportionate and appropriately aligned; as such
resources primarily concentrate on high and medium priority reviews.

3.4

All low priority review areas remain within the audit universe and are reassessed
on an annual basis, however, will not be routinely incorporated in the planning
process if continued to be assessed as a low priority.

3.5

The plan will remain fluid and subject to on-going review, and amended in
consultation with the relevant officers, to ensure it continues to reflect the needs
of the Council. Amendments to the plan will be identified through the Chief
Internal Auditor’s continued contact and liaison with those responsible for the
governance of the Council.

3.6

Other reviews, based on criteria other than risk, may also be built into the work
plan. These may include ‘mandatory’ audits or reviews requested or
commissioned by management. Any commissioned review must be able to
clearly demonstrate a contribution to the audit opinion on risk management,
control and governance.

3.7

The internal audit team have adopted a matrix style approach to enable the
delivery of the plan, by using a resource pool of multi disciplinary auditors
capable of forming into teams as audit projects determine.

3.8

This approach will ensure seasonal peaks in demand can be effectively
managed, an appropriate level of independence in the rotation of audit reviews
and the avoidance of over reliance on individual areas of expertise.

3.9

The Council’s ‘internal audit charter’ ensures the Chief Internal Auditor has
sufficient resource necessary to fulfil the requirements and expectations to
deliver an internal audit opinion.

3.10

Significant matters that jeopardise the delivery of the plan, or require changes to
the plan will be identified, addressed and reported to the Management Team.

3.11

The endorsement and sponsorship of the plan at Member / Executive Head level
will assist in providing the engagement and buy-in of staff at an operational level
to ensure the outcome of audit reviews are optimised.

3.12

A key role of internal audit is to objectively examine, evaluate and report on the
adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic,
efficient and effective use of resources.

3.13

A clear objective of the risk based audit approach adopted is to identify any
instances of over as well as under control and provide management with a clear
articulation of residual risks where existing controls are inadequate.

3.14

In a climate where it is necessary to become less process driven and eliminate
unproductive tasks, internal audit will not become (or perceived) as a barrier to
innovation. Whilst it is imperative that Internal Audit continue to ensure an
appropriate control environment exists and appropriately reported on, the service
is ideally positioned and has been appropriately briefed to challenge current
practice and where applicable highlight duplication and over control, contributing
to efficiencies across the Council.

4.0

Implications

4.1

Resources:
Internal Audit is provided through the Southern Internal Audit Partnership. The
audit plan consists of 380 audit days and remains fluid throughout the year to
meet the changing needs of the Council.

4.2

Legal:
Compliance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.

4.3

Strategy:
Internal audit plays a vital role in helping the organisation accomplish its
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance
processes.

4.4

Risks:
The audit needs assessment follows a risk based audit approach taking
cognisance of the Council’s risk register.

4.5

Communications:
None directly from this report.

4.6

Customers & Community:
None directly from this report although improvements to controls and governance
arrangements will ensure more efficient and effective service delivery.

4.7

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA):
n/a

5.0

Consultation

5.1

The report has been discussed and noted by the Management Team who met at
the Executive Board on 9 February 2016.

Appendices:
Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Plan 2016-2017
Agreed and signed off by:
Legal Services: Sara Bryan – Acting Solicitor to the Council – 18 February 2016
Finance: Jane Eaton - Executive Head of Governance & Logistics – 9 February 2016
Contact Officer:
Job Title:
Telephone:
E-Mail:

Neil Pitman
Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership
01962 845139
neil.pitman@hants.gov.uk

Risk Management

Partnerships

Human Resources

Strategic Planning

Corporate Cross Cutting
Business Continuity Planning / Disaster
Recovery

Audit

4

Review of Business Continuity Plans to
provide assurance on completeness and
currency, focussing on those held at
Service level, ensuring the organisation
can react effectively to emergencies.
Review of Corporate Strategy completed
in 2015-16. 2016-17 review to focus on
organisational development and
workforce planning (appropriate skills
and acumen to deliver services).
Review of the recruitment processes /
monitoring and reporting arrangements,
including follow-up of audit completed in
2015-16 (limited assurance).
Review of governance and transistion
arrangements for the 5-way authority
partnership.
The organisation understands and
manages its existing and emerging risks
in the delivery of its objectives.

Scope / Risk Assessment Summary

Havant Borough Council
Internal Audit Plan 2016-2017

H

Head of
Organisational
Development

Head of
Customer
Services

H

H

H

Head of
Organisational
Development

Steering Group
rep

H

Priority
H/M/L

Head of
Organisational
Development

Audit Sponsor











2016-17

Appendix 1

National Fraud Initiative

Reactive – Fraud Contingency

Proactive – Fraud Compliance

Proactive – Fraud Analytics

CIPFA / TEICAF Fraud Survey

Corporate Governance
Completion of the annual CIPFA fraud
survey.
Identification and strategic analysis and
review of potential high risk areas of
fraud.
Assessment of compliance against the
CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing
the risk of Fraud and Corruption using
the devised ‘assessment tool’.
To enable resources to react to potential
fraud and irregularity reviews through the
year.
Matches and enquiries (2014 data sets):
Data uploads (2016 data sets).

Review of Health and Safety
arrangements, providing assurance over
exposure to unsafe or inappropriate
working practices.
How the organisation handles
information (in particular personal &
sensitive data) including collection,
storage and how it is used taking into
account relevant legislative requirements
(DPA, FOI etc.)

Health and Safety

Information Governance

Scope / Risk Assessment Summary

Audit

M
H

M

n/a

n/a

Head of Finance

Head of Finance

Head of Finance

Head of Finance

H

Priority
H/M/L
H

Head of Finance

Head of
Customer
Services

Head of
Organisational
Development

Audit Sponsor















2016-17

Information Technology
ICT Contract

Main Accounting

Accounts Receivable / Debt Management

Accounts Payable

Benefits

Lease Income

Financial Management

Audit

ICT is being transferred to a new 5
Councils contract from August 2017.
Audit involvement is required early in the
process to ensure the transition plans
are robust and comprehensive.

Processes and controls in place for lease
income ensuring charges are raised
correctly, collected and promptly banked
and charges are periodically and robustly
reviewed.
Review of processes and controls in the
administration of benefit claims and
payments, ensuring they are valid and
managed effectively.
Review of processes and controls
relating to raising purchase orders and
payment of creditors.
Review of processes and controls
relating to raising sundry debts,
collection of income and debt recovery.
Review of processes and controls
relating to the management of the
general ledger.

Scope / Risk Assessment Summary

H

H

H

Head of Finance

Head of Finance

Head of Finance

H

H

Head of
Customer
Services

Steering Group
rep

H

Priority
H/M/L

Head of Finance

Audit Sponsor













2016-17

Thematic Review

Norse South East – Facilities Costing

Norse South East – Governance Arrangements

H

H

Head of Finance

H

H

H

Priority
H/M/L
H

Head of
Environmental
Services

Head of
Environmental
Services
Head of
Environmental
Services

Havant are undertaking a personalisation
programme using CRM software, which
will be branded Havant Bespoke’. The
audit will review controls in place to
support effective project management
and delivery.

Personalisation Programme

Review of the transition programme to
transfer the management of the depot
services to Norse South East.
Review of the governance arrangements
relating to the partnership with Norse
South East, ensuring roles and
responsibilities are defined.
Review of the pricing model applied for
apportioning the costs of facilities / use
of the depot by North South East and
council services.
Review of a selection of services
provided by Havant Borough Council
focussing on a specific theme each year.

Head of
Programmes,
Redesign and
Quality
Head of
Research and
Marketing

Assurance mapping against the
significant IT coverage via the HCC audit
plan.

ICT Hosted Services

Corporate Objectives
Norse South East – Transition / Mobilisation

Audit Sponsor

Scope / Risk Assessment Summary

Audit













2016-17

Advice and Liaison
Annual Internal Audit Report
Governance and Audit Committee
Audit Strategy and Planning
External Audit
Follow ups
Monitoring and Progress Reports

Other Direct Activity

Disabled Facilities Grants

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

Annual Grant Certification, in line with
grant conditions.

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

Head of
Neighbourhood
Support

Head of
Planning
(Havant)

Review of processes and controls for
identifying, collecting, recording and
monitoring of contributions following the
implementation of Exacom, ensuring the
introduction of the system manages the
control weaknesses identified in audit
completed in 2014-15.

Developers Obligations and Contributions /
Community Infrastructure Levy

Grant / Non-Assurance Work

Audit Sponsor

Scope / Risk Assessment Summary

Audit

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

M

Priority
H/M/L
H













2016-17

Appendix 2

Havant Borough Council Audit Universe
(NB: This is not an exhaustive list and will be updated regularly as new
activities are identified)
Corporate Cross Cutting
Asset management
Business continuity planning / Disaster recovery
Strategic planning
Information management / Information governance
Human Resources
Partnerships / Partnership management
Project / Programme management
Risk management
Sustainability / Energy Management
Health and safety
Contract management
Procurement
Performance management
Corporate Governance
Code of Conduct
Constitution
Proactive fraud activities
National Fraud Initiative
Review of Annual Governance Statement
Local Government Transparency Code
Decision making and accountability
Complaints and compliments
Financial Management
Lease Income
Benefits
Parking
Income collection and banking
Capital purchases / Capital programme
Council tax
Treasury Management
Payroll
Accounts payable
Accounts receivable / Debt management
Main accounting
Financial planning / Budgetary control
NNDR (National Non-Domestic Rates)
Overtime / Travel and subsistence
SCOPAC (Standing Conference on Problems Associated with the Coastline
accounts)

9

Havant Borough Council Audit Universe (Continued)
Information Technology
Computer implementations
ICT Policies and Security
ICT System & access controls
Specific applications reviews
Corporate Objectives
Norse South East Joint Venture
Crematorium Partnership
Cemeteries and burials
Beachlands
Coastal Defence Partnership
Beach Huts
Langstone Harbour Board
Sports and Leisure
Traded Services
Regeneration / Economic Development
Building Control
Community Safety
Disabled Facilities Grants
Licencing
Environmental Health
Planning Development / Fee Income
Homelessness / Housing Grants
Housing Loans
Insurance
Land charges
Impact of Legislative Change
Developers Obligations and Contributions / CIL
Thematic Review / small services
Trading Services
Property and Facilities Management / Maintenance
Grant certification work
Grants Received / Grants Awarded

NON EXEMPT

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

02 March 2016

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2016/17
Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership
FOR DECISION
Key Decision: No

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Governance and Audit Committee
with the Internal Audit Charter for 2016/17.

1.2

The Internal Audit Charter formally defines the internal audit activity’s purpose,
authority and responsibility in line with the Public Sector Internal Auditing
Standards [the Standards].

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

That the Governance and Audit Committee approve the Internal Audit Charter for
2016/17.

3.0

Summary

3.1

With effect from 1 April 2013 internal audit services across the public sector have
been governed by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards).

3.2

Within the Standards there is a requirement for an ‘Internal Audit Charter’, a
formal document that defines the purpose, authority and responsibility of the
internal audit activity. The proposed charter is attached at Appendix 1.

3.3

The Internal Audit Charter must be reviewed periodically (as a minimum
annually) by the Chief Internal Auditor and presented to ‘Senior Management’
and ‘the Board’. The Board is defined as
‘the governance group charged with independent assurance on the
adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal control
environment and the integrity of financial reporting. At the Council this
shall mean the Governance and Audit Committee’.

4.0

Implications

4.1

Resources:
Internal Audit is provided through the Southern Internal Audit Partnership. The
audit plan consists of 380 audit days and remains fluid throughout the year to
meet the changing needs of the Council.

4.2

Legal:
Compliance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.

4.3

Strategy:
Internal audit plays a vital role in helping the organisation accomplish its
objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance
processes.

4.4

Risks:
The audit needs assessment follows a risk based audit approach taking
cognisance of the Council’s risk register.

4.5

Communications:
None directly from this report.

4.6

Customers & Community:
None directly from this report although improvements to controls and governance
arrangements will ensure more efficient and effective service delivery.

4.7

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA):
n/a.

5.0

Consultation

5.1

The report has been discussed and approved by the Management Team who
met at the Executive Board on 09 February 2016.

Appendices:
Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Charter
Agreed and signed off by:
Legal Services: Sara Bryan – Acting Solicitor to the Council – 18 February 2016
Finance: Jane Eaton - Executive Head of Governance & Logistics – 9 February 2016
.
Contact Officer:
Job Title:
Telephone:
E-Mail:

Neil Pitman
Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership
01962 845139
neil.pitman@hants.gov.uk

Appendix 1
Internal Audit Charter
Introduction
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, which took effect from the 1 April 2013, provide a
consolidated approach to audit standards across the whole of the public sector providing
continuity, sound corporate governance and transparency.
The ‘Standards’ form part of the wider mandatory elements of the International Professional
Practices Framework (IPPF) which also includes the mission; core principles; definition of
internal audit; and Code of Ethics.
The Standards require all internal audit activities to implement and retain an ‘Internal Audit
Charter’. The purpose of the Internal Audit Charter is to formally define the internal audit
activity’s purpose, authority and responsibility.
Mission and Core Principles
The IPPF ‘Mission’ aims ‘to enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based
and objective assurance, advice and insight.’
The ‘Core Principles’ underpin delivery of the IPPF mission:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Demonstrates integrity;
Is objective and free from undue influence (independent);
Aligns with the strategies, objectives and risks of the organisation;
Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced;
Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement;
Communicates effectively;
Provides risk-based assurance;
Is insightful, proactive, and future-focused; and
Promotes organisational improvement

Authority
The requirement for an internal audit function in local government is detailed within the
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which states that a relevant body must:
‘undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of
internal control in accordance with the proper practices in relation to internal control’.
The standards for ‘proper practices’ in relation to internal audit are laid down in the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013 [the Standards].

Purpose
The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management
processes, control systems, accounting records and governance arrangements. Internal audit
plays a vital role in advising the Council that these arrangements are in place and operating
effectively. The Council’s response to internal audit activity should lead to the strengthening of
the control environment and, therefore, contribute to the achievement of the organisations
objectives.
This is achieved through internal audit providing a combination of assurance and consulting
activities. Assurance work involves assessing how well the systems and processes are
designed and working, with consulting activities available to help to improve those systems and
processes where necessary.
The role of internal audit is best summarised through its definition within the Standards, as an:
‘independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an
organisations operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management,
control and governance processes’.
Responsibility
The responsibility for maintaining an adequate and effective system of internal audit within
Havant Borough Council lies with the Head of Finance as the authority’s Chief Finance Officer
(S151 Officer).
For the Council, internal audit is provided by the Southern Internal Audit Partnership.
The Chief Internal Auditor (Head of Southern Internal Audit Partnership) is responsible for
effectively managing the internal audit activity in accordance with the ‘Mission’, ‘Core Principles’,
‘Definition of Internal Auditing’, the ‘Code of Ethics’ and ‘the Standards’.
Definitions
For the purposes of this charter the following definitions shall apply:
The Board – the governance group charged with independent assurance on the adequacy of
the risk management framework, the internal control environment and the integrity of financial
reporting. At the Council this shall mean the Governance and Audit Committee.
Senior Management – those responsible for the leadership and direction of the Council. At the
Council this shall mean the Executive Board.
Position in the organisation
The Chief Internal Auditor reports functionally to the Board, and organisationally to the Head of
Finance who has statutory responsibility as proper officer under Section 151 of the Local
Government Act 1972, for ensuring an effective system of internal financial control and proper
financial administration of the Council’s affairs.
The Chief Internal Auditor has direct access to the Chief Executive who carries the responsibility
for the proper management of the Council and for ensuring that the principles of good
governance are reflected in sound management arrangements.

The Chief Internal Auditor has direct access to the Council’s Monitoring Officer where matters
arise relating to Chief Executive responsibility, legality and standards.
Where it is considered necessary to the proper discharge of the internal audit function, the Chief
Internal Auditor has direct access to elected Members of the Council and in particular those who
serve on committees charged with governance (i.e. the Governance and Audit Committee).
Internal audit resources
The Chief Internal Auditor will be professionally qualified (Chartered Member of the Institute of
Internal Auditors - CMIIA, Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies - CCAB or
equivalent) and have wide internal audit and management experience, reflecting the
responsibilities that arise from the need to liaise internally and externally with Members, senior
management and other professionals.
The Head of Finance will provide the Chief Internal Auditor with the resources necessary to fulfil
the Council’s requirements and expectations as to the robustness and scope of the internal
audit opinion.
The Chief Internal Auditor will ensure that the internal audit service has access to an
appropriate range of knowledge, skills, qualifications and experience required to deliver the
audit strategy and operational audit plan.
The annual operational plan will identify the resources required to complete the work, thereby
highlighting sufficiency of available resources. The Chief Internal Auditor can propose an
increase in audit resource or a reduction in the number of audits if there are insufficient
resources.
‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’ will be advised where, for whatever reason, internal audit
is unable to provide assurance on any significant risks within the timescale envisaged by the
risk assessment process.
The annual operational plan will be submitted to ‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’, for
approval. The Chief Internal Auditor will be responsible for delivery of the plan. The plan will be
kept under review to ensure it remains responsive to the changing priorities and risks of the
Council.
Significant matters that jeopardise the delivery of the plan or require changes to the plan will be
identified, addressed and reported to ‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’.
If the Chief Internal Auditor, ‘the Board’ or ‘Senior Management’ consider that the scope or
coverage of internal audit is limited in any way, or the ability of internal audit to deliver a service
consistent with the Standards is prejudiced, they will advise the Head of Finance, accordingly.
Independence and objectivity
Internal auditors must be sufficiently independent of the activities they audit to enable them to
provide impartial, unbiased and effective professional judgements and advice.
Internal auditors must maintain an unbiased attitude that allows them to perform their
engagements in such a manner that they believe in their work product and that no quality
compromises are made. Objectivity requires that internal auditors do not subordinate their
judgement on audit matters to others.

To achieve the degree of independence and objectivity necessary to effectively discharge its
responsibilities, arrangements are in place to ensure the internal audit activity:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

retains no executive or operational responsibilities;
operates in a framework that allows unrestricted access to ‘Senior Management’ and
‘the Board’;
reports functionally to ‘the Board’;
reports in their own name;
rotates responsibilities for audit assignments within the internal audit team;
completes individual declarations confirming compliance with rules on independence,
conflicts of interest and acceptance of inducements; and
ensures the planning process recognise and address potential conflicts of interest
through internal audit staff not undertaking an audit for at least two years in an area
where they have had previous operational roles.

If independence or objectivity is impaired in fact or appearance, the details of the impairment will
be disclosed to ‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’. The nature of the disclosure will depend
upon the impairment.
Due professional care
Internal auditors will perform work with due professional care, competence and diligence.
Internal auditors cannot be expected to identify every control weakness or irregularity but their
work should be designed to enable them to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
controls examined within the scope of their review.
Internal auditors will have a continuing duty to develop and maintain their professional skills,
knowledge and judgement based on appropriate training, ability, integrity, objectivity and
respect.
Internal auditors will apprise themselves of the ‘Mission’, ‘Core Principles’, ‘Definition of Internal
Auditing’, the ‘Code of Ethics’ and ‘the Standards’ and will work in accordance with them in the
conduct of their duties.
Internal auditors will be alert to the possibility of intentional wrongdoing, errors and omissions,
poor value for money, failure to comply with management policy and conflicts of interest. They
will ensure that any suspicions of fraud, corruption or improper conduct are promptly reported to
the Chief Internal Auditor in accordance with the Council’s laid down procedures.
Internal auditors will treat the information they receive in carrying out their duties as confidential.
There will be no unauthorised disclosure of information unless there is a legal or professional
requirement to do so. Confidential information gained in the course of internal audit work will not
be used to effect personal gain.
Access to relevant personnel and records
In carrying out their duties, internal audit (on production of identification) shall have unrestricted
right of access to all records, assets, personnel and premises, belonging to the Council or its
key delivery partner organisations.
Internal audit has authority to obtain such information and explanations as it considers
necessary to fulfil its responsibilities. Such access shall be granted on demand and not subject
to prior notice.

Scope of Internal Audit activities
The Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for the delivery of an annual audit opinion and report
that can be used by the Council to inform its governance statement. The annual opinion will
conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of
governance, risk management and control.
The Council assume a Key Stakeholder role within the Southern Internal Audit Partnership
(SIAP). The SIAP currently provides internal audit services to a wide portfolio of public sector
clients (Annex 1) through a variety of partnership and sold service delivery models.
A range of internal audit services are provided (Annex 2) to form the annual opinion for each
member / client of the Southern Internal Audit Partnership. The approach is determined by the
Chief Internal Auditor and will depend on the level of assurance required, the significance of the
objectives under review to the organisations success, the risks inherent in the achievement of
objectives and the level of confidence required that controls are well designed and operating as
intended.
In accordance with the annual audit plan, auditors will plan and evaluate their work so as to
have a reasonable expectation of detecting fraud and identifying any significant weaknesses in
internal controls. Additionally, proactive fraud reviews will be incorporated within the plan to
deter and detect fraud, covering known areas of high risk.
Managers are required to report all suspicions of theft, fraud and irregularity to the Chief Internal
Auditor. The Chief Internal Auditor manages and controls all investigations and will ensure that
investigators are fully trained in carrying out their responsibilities.
Where there is evidence that Council staff are committing fraud, internal audit will liaise with
Human Resources and the department concerned. The decision on whether to invoke criminal
proceedings will be made by the Chief Internal Auditor in conjunction with the Monitoring Officer.
The monitoring of the Council’s Anti-Fraud Strategy will be the responsibility of the Chief Internal
Auditor, as part of the monitoring of the annual internal audit plan.
Internal audit also facilitate the Council’s participation in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) in
which data from the Council’s main systems are matched with data supplied from other Local
Authorities and external agencies to detect potential fraudulent activity.
Reporting
Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report and Opinion
The Chief Internal Auditor shall deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be
used by the organisation to inform its governance statement.
The annual internal audit report and opinion will conclude on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control.
The annual report will incorporate as a minimum:
o
o
o

The opinion;
A summary of the work that supports the opinion; and
A statement on conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the
results of the quality assurance and improvement programme.

Senior Management
As those responsible for the leadership and direction of the Council it is imperative that the
Executive Board are engaged in:
o
o
o
o
o

approving the internal audit charter (minimum annually);
approving the risk based internal audit plan;
receiving communications from the Chief Internal Auditor on the internal audit activity’s
performance relative to its plan and other matters;
making appropriate enquiries of management and the Chief Internal Auditor to determine
whether there are inappropriate scope and resource limitations; and
receiving the results of internal and external assessments of the quality assurance and
improvement programme, including areas of non-conformance.

The Board
Organisational independence is effectively achieved when the Chief Internal Auditor reports
functionally to the Board. Such reporting will include:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

approving the internal audit charter;
approving the risk based internal audit plan;
approving the internal audit resource plan;
receiving communications from the Chief Internal Auditor on the internal audit activity’s
performance relative to its plan and other matters, including the annual report and
opinion;
making appropriate enquiries of management and the Chief Internal Auditor to determine
whether there are inappropriate scope or resource limitations;
agreement of the scope and form of the external assessment as part of the quality
management and improvement plan;
receiving the results of internal and external assessments of the quality assurance and
improvement programme, including areas of non-conformance; and
approval of significant consulting services not already included in the audit plan, prior to
acceptance of the engagement.

Review of the internal audit charter
This charter will be reviewed annually (minimum) by the Chief Internal Auditor and presented to
‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’ for approval.

Annex 1
Southern Internal Audit Partnership – Client Portfolio

Strategic Partners:

Hampshire County Council
Southampton City Council

Key Stakeholder Partners:

Havant Borough Council
East Hampshire District Council
Winchester City Council
Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority
Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner
/ Hampshire Constabulary

External clients:

Hampshire Pension Fund
Higher Education Institutions
University of Winchester
Further Education Institutions and Sixth
Form Colleges
Brockenhurst;
Eastleigh;
Highbury;
Isle of Wight College;
Itchen;
Portsmouth;
Queen Mary College (QMC);
St Vincent’s; and
Taunton’s;
Academies
Highcliffe

Annex 2
Assurance Services
o

Risk based audit: in which risks and controls associated with the achievement of defined
business objectives are identified and both the design and operation of the controls in place
to mitigate key risks are assessed and tested, to ascertain the residual risk to the
achievement of managements’ objectives. Any audit work intended to provide an audit
opinion will be undertaken using this approach.

o

Developing systems audit: in which:
o
o

the plans and designs of systems under development are assessed to identify the
potential weaknesses in internal control and risk management; and
programme / project management controls are assessed to ascertain whether the
system is likely to be delivered efficiently, effectively and economically.

o

Compliance audit: in which a limited review, covering only the operation of controls in place
to fulfil statutory, good practice or policy compliance obligations are assessed.

o

Quality assurance review: in which the approach and competency of other reviewers /
assurance providers are assessed in order to form an opinion on the reliance that can be
placed on the findings and conclusions arising from their work.

o

Fraud and irregularity investigations: Internal audit may also provide specialist skills and
knowledge to assist in or lead fraud or irregularity investigations, or to ascertain the
effectiveness of fraud prevention controls and detection processes. Internal audit’s role in
this respect is outlined in the Council’s Anti Fraud and Anti Corruption Strategy.

o

Advisory / Consultancy services: in which advice can be provided, either through formal
review and reporting or more informally through discussion or briefing, on the framework of
internal control, risk management and governance. It should be noted that it would not be
appropriate for an auditor to become involved in establishing or implementing controls or to
assume any operational responsibilities and that any advisory work undertaken must not
prejudice the scope, objectivity and quality of future audit work.

NON EXEMPT
HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

2 March 2016

QUARTERLY UPDATE ON CORPORATE RISKS FROM THE
EXECUTIVE BOARD
Report by Cheryl Lincoln, Governance and Information Manager
FOR NOTING
Cabinet Lead for Governance & Logistics
Key Decision: No

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

There are several risks showing red on our corporate risk register after mitigation.
Risk is a part of life and of business. If the Council avoided risk it would not be able
to deliver its services or achieve its ambitions outlined in the Corporate Strategy.
Risk management is a way of understanding, evaluating and mitigating risks to
ensure we can achieve the Council’s objectives.





A ‘risk’ is a specific thing that might cause harm to the business
‘Risk management’ is a good governance process to understand the threats to
the business and put in place processes and actions that will bring greater
safety and reduce risk
Inclusion of a risk on the risk register does not mean that managers believe that
the risk will happen
The entry on the risk register will include an assessment of (a) the likelihood and
(b) the impact of a risk, as well as the actions and processes in place to reduce
both risk and impact

1.2

Efficient organisations have clear frameworks and processes led from Board level.
The Council’s Constitution names the Governance & Audit Committee as the
Councillor board responsible for managing risk.

1.3

The details of how the Council manages risk are outlined in the statement of
arrangements for managing risk. The Governance & Audit Committee reviews this
statement every year in June. In their role as the Councillor body overseeing the
way Council officers manage risk the Governance & Audit Committee reviews the
highest risks remaining in the Council after each management meeting.

1.4

This report gives the Committee an update on the highest corporate risks reviewed
by the Joint Executive Board in February 2016.

NON EXEMPT
2.0

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee notes the most serious corporate risks reviewed by the Joint
Executive Board on 9 February 2016.

3.0

Summary

3.1

This report tells the Committee about the risks the Executive Board felt remained
high after mitigation at their last review meeting.

4.0

Subject of Report

4.1

To oversee the effectiveness of risk management the Governance & Audit
Committee note the most important risks facing the Council at the last quarterly
review of the risk registers by the Executive Board. The last quarterly review was
on 9 February 2016.

4.2

There are several risks showing red on our corporate risk register after mitigation.
The risks and the reasons are as follows:


Contractual Arrangements – Preferred bidders have now been announced
for those services being considered as part of the 5 Districts proposal.
Cabinet agreed the recommendations for the preferred bidders on 3rd
February 2016. Contracts will be awarded at the end of March.
The risk remains very high until such time as the contracts are signed.



Manpower & Resources/Leadership Quality – With the Senior Management
Resourcing review there is a risk of losing key staff during the reorganisation
or potential risk to the organisation due to vacancies following the review.
In addition the Legal Team is understaffed; the loss of key legal staff will
have an impact on the organisation until such time as the recruitment drives
have been completed. Whilst this remains red the Resourcing review is due
to be completed in March 2016 and the recruitment campaign for Head of
Legal Services is currently underway. The position of Assistant Solicitor has
been successfully recruited to with a start date of 14th March 2016.



Service Continuity during Organisation Change – There is a risk of services
not being performed or lost during handovers following the implementation of
the Senior Management Resourcing Review and during the transition of
services as part of the 5 Districts project e.g. HR, IT and Finance. There
needs to be clear transitional arrangements, a systematic approach to handover and the resources to ensure satisfactory cover during interim
arrangements.

NON EXEMPT


Funding Losses – Reductions in government funding e.g. New Homes
Bonus and reductions in council tax and the review of business rates may
lead to difficulties balancing the Councils budget and insufficient funds to
deliver services. Medium term financial planning, structured budget setting,
implementation of the Corporate Strategy programme will help to mitigate
and work is currently underway on long term financial planning. This risk
remains high as losses from further austerity are unclear and part of the
councils funding is based on government grants.

4.3

Following this review, the remaining risks have either been further mitigated or
remain unchanged.

5.0

Implications

5.1

Resources:
There are no resource implications of this report because risk management is one
of the regular funded functions of the management of the Council.

5.2

Legal:
There are no legal implications arising from this report.

5.3

Strategy:
Sound risk management supports the Council’s objective of financial sustainability
by ensuring financial risks are controlled and customer service excellence by
ensuring the continuity of our services.

5.4

Risks:
This report forms part of the Council’s risk management arrangements.

5.5

Communications:
There is no need for communications following this report.

5.6

For the Community:
There is no community impact from this report but it will assist in ensuring the
community continue to receive vital council services.

5.7

The Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) is not needed for this report because it
does not contain a decision.

NON EXEMPT

6.0

Consultation
Executive Board and the Risk Management Group.

Background Papers:
None

Agreed and signed off by:
Legal Services: 4th February 2016
Executive Head of Governance & Logistics: 2nd February 2016
Relevant Executive Head: 2nd February 2016
Cabinet Lead: 10th February 2016
Contact Officer:
Job Title:
Telephone:
E-Mail:

Cheryl Lincoln
Governance and Information Manager
02392 446568
cheryl.lincoln@havant.gov.uk

